
 

 

Aleutians East Borough 
Assembly Meeting 

 

 

 

Workshop: Thursday, February 10, 2022– 1:00 p.m. 

Meeting: Thursday, February 10, 2022– 3:00 p.m. 



ROLL CALL & ESTABLISHMENT 

OF QUOROM 



ADOPTION OF AGENDA 



 
 

 

Agenda 

 Assembly Meeting  

(packet available on website www.aleutianseast.org ) 

 

Date:   Thursday, February 10, 2022 

Time: Meeting: 3:00 p.m. 

 

Location: By teleconference in each designated community location below: 

King Cove AEB Office 

Nelson Lagoon Corp.  

False Pass City Office 

 Sand Point AEB Office 

Akutan City Office  

Cold Bay City Office/Library 

Anchorage AEB Office, 3380 C Street

      

All communities will be provided with conference calling information for the designated location in your 

community. Public comments on agenda items will take place after the adoption of the agenda.  The meeting will 

also be broadcast on KSDP Public Radio.  

 

ASSEMBLY MEETING AGENDA 

  

1. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum 

 

2. Adoption of the Agenda 

 

3. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

 

4. Conflict of Interest 

 

 

PLATTING BOARD AGENDA 

5. Resolution 22-05, Approving ASLS 2018-24 Bear Lake Survey 

6. Adjourn 

 

ASSEMBLY MEETING AGENDA 

7. Minutes 

• January 13, 2022 

 

8. Financial Reports 

• December 2021 Financials 

 

9. Investment Report 

• APCM December 2021 Investment Report 

 

10. Consent Agenda 

• Resolution 22-09, Approving the State of Alaska Final Easement and Survey for ADL 228613 

http://www.aleutianseast.org/


 

 

 

11. Public Hearing 

 

12. Ordinances 

• Introduction Ordinance 22-09, Authorizing the Mayor to negotiate and execute a sublease 

within Cold Bay Terminal for air transportation services.  

 
13. Resolutions 

• Resolution 22-30, Relating to disposal of surplus, obsolete or unneeded supplies 

 

14. Old Business 

 

15. New Business 

• SWAMC Presentation by SWAMC President Gronholdt 

 

16. Reports and Updates 

 

17. Assembly Comments 

 

18. Public Comments 

 

19. Next Meeting Date 

• March 10, 2022 

 

20. Adjournment 

 
 



COMMUNITY ROLL CALL & 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA 

ITEMS 



CONFLICT OF INTEREST 



PLATTING BOARD AGENDA 



Memo: AEB Platting Board Resolution 22-05 

Re: Review/approve ASLS 2018-24 

Date: February 4, 2022 

From:  Ernie Weiss 

 

The attached Platting Board Resolution 22-05 signifies the AEB Platting Board approval of the 

Alaska State Land Survey (ASLS) 2018-24, AEB municipal land selections at Bear Lake, and 

forwards ASLS 2018-24 to the Assembly for final approval at the next Assembly meeting. 

 

ASLS 2018-24 creates Tract C-1 of approximately 1,217 acres, the AEB municipal land 

selections on the northeastern coast of Bear Lake, including the Bear Lake airstrip. 

 

Background 

 

In response to an AEB request, the State of Alaska Department of Natural Resources issued 

survey instructions July 22, 2019 for ASLS 2018-24, also known as ADL 226712, the Bear Lake 

Municipal Entitlement Tract. As authorized by Assembly Resolution 19-66, the AEB contracted 

again with McClintock Land Associates to do the survey. McClintock conducted the field work 

on the survey in August 2019, with use of a helicopter and working with Warren Johnson, whose 

lodge is on the adjoining USS No. 6049. The adjoining USS 4817 of 5 acres is owned by ADFG.  

 

Survey of municipal land selections is a necessary step towards patent and final conveyance of 

said lands to a municipality. Previous recent municipal land selections surveyed by McClintock 

for the Borough: Port Moller lands in 2017 and Sandy River lands in 2018. No further municipal 

land selection surveys are planned or contemplated at this time. 

 

AEB Municipal Code section 40.05.105(a) states that “in the event that the Aleutians East 

Borough Planning Commission is unable to meet, then the Aleutians East Borough Assembly 

shall act as the Aleutians East Borough Platting Board.” 

Recommendation 

Recommend the Platting Board adopt Resolution 22-05. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 22-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH PLATTING BOARD  

 

Approving ASLS 2018-24 Bear Lake Survey 

 

 

WHEREAS, in the event that the Aleutians East Borough Planning Commission is unable to meet, 

the Aleutians East Borough Assembly shall act as the Aleutians East Borough Platting Board; per 

AEB Municipal Code section 40.05.105, and 

 

WHEREAS, State of Alaska Department of Natural Resources issued survey instructions in 2019 

for AEB municipal land selections near Bear Lake of approximately 1200 acres known as Alaska 

State Land Survey (ASLS) 2018-24, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough contracted with McClintock Land Associates in 2019 to 

survey ASLS 2018-24 near Bear Lake, towards the eventual result of final conveyance from the 

State, and 

 

WHEREAS, ASLS 2018-24 has been reviewed by the State of Alaska Department of Natural 

Resources and is ready for Borough approval. 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Aleutians East Borough Platting Board approves 

ASLS 2018-24 and forwards to the Aleutians East Borough Assembly for final approval. 

 

Approved and adopted this 10th day of February, 2022. 

 

 

 

_____________________     _____________________ 

Alvin D. Osterback, Presiding Officer   Beverly Rosete, Clerk  



SHEET 1 OF 5
INDEX SHEET



SHEET 2 OF 5



SHEET 3 OF 5



SHEET 4 OF 5



SHEET 5 OF 5



MINUTES 



 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Alvin D. Osterback called the Aleutians East Borough Assembly meeting to order by 
teleconference in each community on January 13, 2022 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL   
 
Mayor Alvin D. Osterback  Present 
Chris Babcock    Present 
Carol Foster    Present 
Warren Wilson    Present 
Josephine Shangin   Present 
Paul Gronholdt    Present 
Brenda Wilson    Present 
Denise Mobeck    Present 
  
Advisory Members: 
Dailey Schaack, Cold Bay  Present 
Samantha McNeley, Nelson Lagoon Present 
Tom Hoblet, False Pass   Present 
 
A quorum was present. 
 
Staff Present: 
Roxann Newman, Finance Director 
Anne Bailey, Administrator  
Talia Jean-Louis, Assistant Administrator 
Ernie Weiss, Natural Resources Director 
Glennora Dushkin, Acting Clerk 
Laura Tanis, Communications Director 
Emil Mobeck, Maintenance Director 
 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 Hearing no changes or additions, the agenda will stand as written. 

CHRIS makes a motion second by JOSEPHINE 
 
COMMUNITY ROLL CALL AND PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 
The communities of King Cove, Sand Point, Akutan, Cold Bay, False Pass, Nelson Lagoon and the 
Anchorage office were participating by teleconference.  Also broadcast on KSDP radio.  
There were no public comments. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Mayor Osterback asked for any potential Conflict of Interests to discuss. There were no conflicts on 
agenda items. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
Trident Seafoods, Shannon Carroll and Dave Abassian 
 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

2 
 

Carroll said Trident is still requiring full vaccination and this year requiring up-to-date with vaccinations, 
really appreciate the relationship with Eastern Aleutian Tribes. Will have enhanced visitation and onsite 
protocol given the speed of this variant is spreading. Trident has been working with their trade 
association to respond to a recent emergency rule request that has the potential to shut down the 
Bering Sea Pollock Fishery over salmon bycatch, this would have an impact on the Akutan and Sand 
Point operations. For the Board of Fish, we worked with Silver Bay to submit a letter requesting that the 
ACR that was passed through Chignik would be moved to not conflict with cod fishing. Trident had a 
100-acre farm approved for kelp operations, but have no immediate plans. 
 
Abassian said they are currently staffing the plants. The Akutan plant is currently running cod and the 
Sand Point plant is getting ready for the crab fisheries. Planning to support the fleet in the Gulf of Alaska 
in various fisheries, staying in close communication. The summer 2021 season was done a little 
differently than normal, and planning to do the same for 2022 season.  
 
JOSEPHINE asked if Trident was looking at an open date for any of the community. Abassian said until 
numbers come down the doors will probably stay closed.  
 
JOSEPHINE asked if the gym will be open to the public, Carroll said he will check into it.  
 
PAUL asked what are plans for the Sand Point plant. Abassian said they are planning to operate it the 
same as last year and the fishermen will be supported.   
 
Silver Bay Seafoods, Abby Fredricks 
The 2021 season was a success with the team being fully vaccinated and had very low case count 
detected for COVID. Silver Bay is following the changing guidance for the virus, vaccines seem to be the 
key. We are going into our fourth year of operating in False Pass. The company has decided to put a 
pause on whitefish for 2022. Similar to 2021, we will continue to buy salmon. Making additional 
investments for the company including a new tender, the Steelhead, this boat has a very shallow draft, 
really easy to maneuver and can access the dock very well so it is perfect for the area. We are looking 
forward to being partner in the region for years to come.  
 
TOM asked if whitefish is coming into the community for this year. Fredricks said that there is a pause 
for 2022.  
 
Peter Pan Seafoods, Steve Minor 
Peter Pan was acquired by new ownership a year ago, we have a strong Alaska component in the new 
ownership. Most of our focus right now is on marketing and value-added production. In order to work 
for PPSF, one must be fully vaccinated. We are still operating on a closed campus, which isn’t changing 
anytime soon. We recently withdrew from the Boston Seafood Showing because we don’t want to put 
our staff and vendors at risk with COVID still being widely spread. Our next biggest challenge will be the 
March Board of Fish. We plan to stay open for this season, though the decline in Bering Sea Crab is not 
helpful.  
 
Natural Resources Director Weiss said thank you to all three of the processors, they work well with the 
fishermen, we appreciate it. 
 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

3 
 

Mayor Osterback said thank you to all three processors. The Borough will be working with all of the 
processors to support all the protection of our fisheries in the Gulf and the Bering Sea as we move 
through the issues before us.  
 
Eastern Aleutian Tribes, Paul Mueller 
First would like to take all three of the processors. Mueller said we work well with the processors, EAT 
vaccinates as soon as they can. Omicron is running around and is more transmissible than the other 
variants combined, it is more mild effects, but it within nine days, EAT had two medivacs with the 
Omicron variant. Mueller says to follow the mitigation measures, get vaccinated, wear a mask, social 
distance and keep your social bubble small. Testing has increased expediential, starting to send down at 
home test for people to use if the clinics are closed. 
 
Assembly Meeting recessed.  
 

PLATTING BOARD AGENDA 
Platting Board Resolution 22-03, a resolution of the Aleutians East Borough Platting Board Approving the 
State of Alaska Final Easement and Survey for ADL 228613. 

MOTION 
BRENDA makes a motion to approve Resolution 22-02 and second by DENISE. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Administrator Bailey said in June 2004 the Department of Natural Resources issued an easement 
decision to approve installation of two hovercraft landing terminals and segment of public 
access road over state tide and submerge lands underlying Cold Bay on the southern end of the 
Alaska Peninsula. The easement is approximately 12,000 feet in length and a variable width for a 
total of 7.63 acres or less. The First amendment was done in 2005 and the second in 2018. In 
2019, the survey was completed as part of the requirements of the State. The State has 
provided the Borough a copy of the survey as well as the final easement document for ADL 
228613.  
 

ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Paul, Brenda, Denise, Chris, Carol, Josephine, Warren. Advisory: Dailey, Samantha. 
Nays: None. 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Platting Board Resolution 22-04, a resolution of the Platting Board Approving ASLS 2017-46 

MOTION 
WARREN makes a motion to approve Resolution 22-04 and second by BRENDA. 

 
 DISCUSSION 

Natural Resources Director Weiss said this resolution would approve ASLS 2017-46. This is the 
larger part of the Sandy River municipal land selection. This has been in front of the Assembly in 
August 2021 and the final approval by the Assembly in September. Then DNR made a minor 
change, the change made added 17 more acres.  
 

ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Josephine, Warren, Carol, Chris, Paul, Brenda, Denise. Advisory: Samantha, Dailey, Tom.  



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

4 
 

Nays: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
ADJORNED from platting board 

 
MINUTES  
December 10, 2021, Assembly Meeting Minutes 

MOTION 
CHRIS moved to accept the December 10, 2021 Assembly Meeting Minutes and second by 
DENISE. 

 
Hearing no more MOTION CARRIED. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 
November 2021 Financial Report 

MOTION 
JOSEPHINE made a motion to approve the November 2021 Financial Reports and second by 
WARREN 

 
Administrator Bailey said that the Raw Fish Tax for November 2021 is about 87% of the 5-year 
average. We anticipated $1.1 million from the State Shared Raw Fish Tax but we received $1.69 
million and an additional $279,000 from the State which was COVID Funds. Totaling about $1.79 
million, which is similar to what we received in 2019. Everything else is tracking along as it 
should.  

 
ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Warren, Paul, Chris, Josephine, Denise, Brenda, Carol.  Advisory:  Dailey, Samantha, Tom. 
Nay: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
INVESTMENT REPORT 
APCM November 2021 Investment Report 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearing Ordinance 22-01, Authorizing the assignment of Certain Real Property leased by the 
Aleutians East Borough. 

MOTION 
 CAROL made a motion to approve Ordinance 22-01 and second by BRENDA 
 

Administrator Bailey addressed both Ordinance 22-01 and Ordinance 22-02. These ordinances 
were presented to the Assembly in July 2021, tabled until August 2021 meeting. The ordinances 
were on the agenda at the August 2021 meeting, but due to a lack of a motion to take it of the 
table, the motion was lost. At the September 2021 meeting, Assembly Member Foster 
requested to place the discussion in the December agenda. At the December 2021 meeting, 
both ordinances were scheduled for Public Hearing for January 2022. The Cold Bay School was 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

5 
 

closed in 2015, and the administration has received numerous proposals since then. There is an 
entity that is currently interested in accepting the assignment of lease, which is the land from 
the Borough and the State of Alaska and acquiring the building with the Bill of Sale. 

 
PAUL asked if we have any update on correspondence from the city of Cold Bay or the School Board. 
Mayor Osterback and Administrator Bailey said no.   
 
ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Carol, Chris, Brenda, Denise, Warren, Josephine. Advisory: Tom, Dailey, Samantha. 
Nays: Paul 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Public Hearing Ordinance 22-02, Authorizing the Sale of Certain Real Property owned by the Aleutians 
East Borough. 
 MOTION 

WARREN made a motion to approve Ordinance 22-02 and second by CHRIS. 
 
Administrator Bailey discussed with Ordinance 22-01. 

 
ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Josephine, Carol, Chris, Warren, Denise, Brenda. Advisory: Dailey, Samantha, Tom. 
Nays: Paul. 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Public Hearing Ordinance 22-06, Amending Title 6, Chapter 6.04, Section 6.04.041, Subsection (E) of the 
Aleutians East Borough Code of Ordinances 

MOTION 
JOSEPHINE made a motion to approve Ordinance 22-06 and second by CHRIS. 

 
Administrator Bailey said APCM is recommending changes to this section to amend the Borough 
Asset Classes to improve the diversification and increase return expectation without more risk. 
Changes were made on the following: Subsection E, Subsection E1, Subsection E2 and 
Subsection E3. Additional language was added to reflect the changes.  

 
PAUL said this seems like a good idea to support our financial future.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Brenda, Denise, Warren, Chris, Carol, Josephine, Paul. Advisory: Dailey, Tom, Samantha. 
Nays: Non.  
MOTION CARRIED 
 
ORDINANCES 
Emergency Ordinance 22-08, an Emergency Ordinance of the Aleutians East Borough Assembly Issuing a 
Declaration of Disaster Emergency in Response to COVID-19. 
 MOTION 

JOSEPHINE made a motion to approve Emergency Ordinance 22-07 and second by CHRIS 
 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

6 
 

Administrator Bailey said currently we have a surge of cases of COVID in the region and in 
Alaska. This would allow the Mayor to request Federal assistance, and it would allow us to meet 
outside of the designated meeting locations if necessary. This will go into effect today and 
expire March 13, 2022. 

 
PAUL asked if we can highlight the difference between this ordinance and the one we are currently 
under and Administrator Bailey said she took out a few of the original whereas and added additional 
language further on regarding the Delta and Omicron variant that has arrived in Alaska.  
 
ROLL CALL. 
Yeas: Josephine, Carol, Chris, Warren, Denise, Brenda, Paul.  Advisory: Dailey, Samantha, Tom.  
Nay: None  
MOTION CARRIED 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
Resolution 22-25, Approving State Land Survey 2017-47. 

MOTION 
CHRIS moved to approve Resolution 22-25 and second by CAROL 

 
Natural Resources Director Weiss said this is a two-step approval process for the Platting Board, 
this is the second part of the Sandy River Municipal Land Section and is separate on its own 
totaling 590.72 acres. This should be the final part. After this is approved, we would send in the 
Platting approval form through the surveyor to the DNC and mylar copies will be made and 
signed by all parties. 

 
ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Carol, Brenda, Paul, Warren, Denise, Josephine, Chris.  Advisory:  Dailey, Samantha, Tom. 
Nay: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution 22-26, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly Selecting and Promoting FY2023 Capital Projects 
for the Health, Safety and Welfare of its Residents 

MOTION 
JOSEPHINE moved to approve Resolution 22-26 and second by CHRIS 

 
Administrator Bailey said the Borough is dedicated to bringing its communities opportunities for 
responsible and appropriate economic development and growth and develop its transportation 
infrastructure. The Borough continuously seeks opportunities to plan, advance and construct 
basic and essential community projects.  

 
DAILEY asked if the Borough is going to look into a breakwater or harbor. Administrator Bailey said that 
is something that could be discussed, but right now it is just a dock replacement. Mayor Osterback said 
he thinks there are drawings somewhere that included a small breakwater at the dock and this is 
something we could look into. 
  
PAUL said there should be some records about discussions about filling in the piling on the way out and 
across the dock with rock fill that wouldn’t require permits.  



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

7 
 

WARREN said we can’t get too sidetracked with getting the dock fixed because if we do, we’d never get 
the road to Cold Bay. Mayor Osterback said these are two separate issues. 
DAILEY said the dock serves a lot of purposes for the city of Cold Bay. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Denise, Chris, Paul, Carol, Brenda, Warren, Josephine.  Advisory:  Dailey, Samantha, Tom. 
Nay: None  
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution 22-27, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly Adopting the Aleutians East Borough Multi-
Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 MOTION 
 BRENDA moved to approve Resolution 22-27 and second by DENISE. 
 

Administrator Bailey said the plan is to assist the Borough and its communities as a valuable 
resource tool in decision making. The State of Alaska was awarded a grant from FEMA to update 
the 2010 hazard mitigation plan which would assist the Borough in the communities of Akutan, 
False Pass, Nelson Lagoon and Sand Point. The City of Cold Bay decided not to participate and 
will develop a plan later. 

 
CHRIS asked if once approved would each of the communities receive a copy. Administrator Bailey said 
yes. 
  
ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Denise, Chris, Paul, Carol, Brenda, Warren, Josephine. Advisory: Dailey, Samantha, Tom.  
Nays: None 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Resolution 22-28, Approving a Pay Increase for the Borough Administrative Clerk 
 MOTION 
 CHRIS moved to approve Resolution 22-28 and second by JOSEPHINE 
 

Administrator Bailey said this would approve the Administrative Clerk’s pay increase. Glennora 
was appointed as Acting Clerk on October 30, 2021 and will relinquish her Acting Clerk duties on 
January 16, 2022. Glennora will assume Deputy Clerk duties therefore her workload 
requirements have increased.  

 
PAUL moved to amend Resolution 22-28, to change last whereas pay increase from $22.15 to $25.00 
and change the Therefore, let it be resolve from $22.15 to $25.00 and second by BRENDA.  
 
Administrator Bailey said that would exceed what is available, upon approval at the next meeting there 
will need to be a budget amendment. 
 
BRENDA said thank you to Glennora and it is really wonderful that one of the local people is moving up 
and learning the system and possibly can take over in the future, and she’s really proud of what she’s 
doing. She really opened up and listens to what concerned people has and she did it with genuineness.  
 
CHRIS wants to echo what Brenda said. 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

8 
 

DAILEY wants to say thank you as well. 
Assistant Administrator Jean-Louis said great job Glennora. 
 
WARREN asked Paul to explain his pay increase. PAUL said that Glennora will have to train the new clerk 
and that he thinks it is more than appropriate.   
 
ROLL CALL on original resolution 
Yeas: Denise, Chris, Paul, Carol, Brenda, Warren, Josephine. Advisory: Dailey, Samantha, Tom.  
Nays: None  
MOTION CARRIED 
 
WARREN said thank you Glennora for the hard work and looks forward to working with Glennora for a 
long time. 
 
ROLL CALL on amended resolution 
Yeas: Denise, Chris, Paul, Carol, Brenda, Warren, Josephine. Advisory: Dailey, Samantha, Tom.  
Nays: None. 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  

Work Session Formatting:  
The Mayor and Administration have discussed and would like to change the way work sessions 
are conducted in an attempt to be more efficient. A work session may be held to discuss an 
individual topic or topics prior to the Assembly meeting rather than going over the entire 
agenda. 

 
2022 Advisory Appointments: 
There shall be one advisory for each community that does not have an elected Assembly 
Member residing. The term is one annual year. The communities of Cold Bay, False Pass and 
Nelson Lagoon do not have an Assembly Member. A posting was sent out to those communities 
and three letters of interest were received. 
  Cold Bay – Dailey Schaack 
  False Pass – Tom Hoblet 
  Nelson Lagoon – Samantha McNeley 
MOTION 
CHRIS moved to appoint the three as Advisory Members for 2022 and second by BRENDA 
 

ROLL CALL 
Yeas: Denise, Chris, Paul, Carol, Brenda, Warren, Josephine. Advisory: Dailey, Samantha, Tom. 
Nays: None. 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REPORTS AND UPDATES 
Administrator’s Report in packet. Highlights below: 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

9 
 

CARES Act Funding Update: 
The Borough received approximately $3.7 million. Expended $3.6 million by December 31, 2021. 
Remaining Invoices are anticipated to cover the remaining balance.  
 
COVID-19 Funding Update: 
In September 2021, the Borough received $324,086.50 in ARPA/SALT funds. The second Tranche of the 
funds will be received in September 2022 in the amount of $325.086.50. The full amount must be 
expended by December 31, 2024.  
 
Cold Bay Terminal: 
Work is progressing well, crew arrived back in Cold Bay, and interior slab was poured. Project is till 
scheduled to complete in January 2022. 
 
King Cove Road Update:  
9th Circuit Appeal: A decision on this case is still pending. Secretary Haaland’s visit to King Cove is 
rescheduled sometime in early 2022. No response has been received from USFWS to the Stat DOT/PF 
administrative appeal that was filed. King Cove attorneys are trying to determine the next step in this 
appeal process. 
 
Akun Dock and Breakwater Update: 
One proposal was received for RFP on the due date. Mac Enterprises was selected and a fully time 
charter agreement was executed last December. 
 
Sand Point and Akutan Harbor Floats Update: 
On December 23, 2021, the PIDP grant awards were announced. Unfortunately, the Borough’s grant 
application was not selected to receive an award. Administration will follow up with PIDP to schedule a 
debrief meeting to review the application. Letters were sent to Representative Edgmon and Senator 
Hoffman requesting to fully support funding the Borough’s Sand Point Harbor State harbor Facility Grant 
request. 
 
Financial Software Update:  
A Request for Proposal has been issued Proposals are due on January 20, 2022. 
 
Other Items Update:  
Day to Day operations continues. 
 
Assistant Administrator Report in packet. Highlights below: 
Attended the following meetings: Coid-19, Cold Bay Airport terminal, Cold Bay Dock Feasibility Study, 
King Cove School Discussion and Fisheries Meeting  
 
ISO Tank Inspection Report: 
Matson is now requiring inspection reports for fuel. Received a few quotes and still continuing to look 
for additional quotes. 
 
Beazley Breach Solutions: 
Two additional trainings were assigned. Beazley is a pioneer of breach response insurance that helps 
clients prepare for a data breach, respond if an incident occurs, and indemnify losses from regulatory 
actions. 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

10 
 

 
ICE Services: 
ICE Services begin the migration process of installing the new Firewall System. All hardware has been 
received. They will then ship the other two units to King Cove and Sand Point and coordinate with staff 
on-site to complete the swap. 
 
Mail Tracking Form: 
The letters which highlight the issues concerning our mail system were mailed out December 17th.  
Contacted all the Post Office in the community to look into having our flyers and forms, all declined. 
 
Communications Director Report in packet.  Highlights below: 
Press Release: 
Drafted and distributed a press release regarding the King Cove land exchange issue and the 8-year 
anniversary since the land swap was rejected. Quotes from various community leaders were included in 
the press release. Senator Lisa Murkowski also sent out her own release which received media 
attention. 
 
Website Design: 
Continue to meet with Planeteria Media weekly about the website design. Home Page design was 
finalized. Currently working on crosswalk content where you take content from pages and transferring it 
over to the new website while updating it. 
 
2022 AEB Calendar: 
Calendar was already printed. The calendars will be sent out to Borough and city offices. 
 
In the Loop: 
Currently working on another edition that will feature Sand Point Police Officer Curt Boyle. Another 
newsletter will focus on the new ambulance for King Cove. 
 
Upcoming Projects: 
Update the social media plan for Aleutians East Borough, Draft RFP for professional photographer to 
visit and photograph Borough communities, infrastructure, etc. and continue work on website 
design/update 
 
Natural Resources Director Report in packet. Highlights below: 
Alaska Board of Fisheries: 
Southeast Yakutat meeting was postposed and was moved in Anchorage this March 10-22. Hatchery 
Meeting will be on the 23 and Statewide Shellfish meeting where they will hear the proposal 282 which 
is a transcription of ACR 7, supposedly March 26-April 2nd but that date is tentative. Board of Fish is 
down a member and Governor is to appoint a new member. 
 
Alaska Board of Game: 
Meeting is set in January 21-29 in Wasilla to consider South Central and SW Alaska game proposals, 
including for game management units 9 & 10 in our region. 19 Emperor Geese proposals, 1 from Alaska 
Migratory Bird Co Management Council that wants to take the right of non-residents to hunt Emperor 
Geese. All the others would provide increased opportunity for nonresident Emperor Geese hunting. The 
City of Cold Bay is on record supporting increased non-resident opportunity. 
 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
Date: January 13, 2022 

11 
 

North Pacific Fishery Management Council: 
The NPFMC will hold the February meeting once again in an online-only format. April meeting is 
scheduled in person. The Council took final action in December on the BSAI halibut abundance-based 
management and on BSAI and GOA groundfish specifications 
 
AEB Fishermen’s End of the Year Meeting: 
The December 29th meeting was held via Zoom and was broadcast on KSDP. 
 
Chinook Salmon Bycatch: 
Several groups from the AYK region submitted an emergency petition to the Secretary of Commerce 
requesting an elimination of all Chinook salmon bycatch in the Bering Sea Pollock fishery. This would 
essentially close the BSAI Pollock fishery. We are working on our response and reaching out to other 
groups in our region to continue to support reasonable and sustainable Pollock fishery management. 
 
Assistant Natural Resources Director Report in packet. Highlights below: 
Report in the Packet 
 
Maintenance Director Report: 
Ongoing Maintenance Projects:  
Working with Talia with the Fuel Tank inspection for the tank in Akutan. Finishing up on the bridge signs 
for King Cove and False Pass, and finishing up on the corrections that need to be done. Coordinating 
with the school to get TMI aquatics out to find the leak in the pool. Finished the floors in the bathrooms 
here in the office in Sand Point. Ordered new AED’s for the offices and terminal. Painting two new doors 
for Sand Point School before installing so they are protected. Received a new window for the office here 
in Sand Point for a replacement of the broken one. 
 
MAYOR’S UPDATE 
None. 
 
ASSEMBLY COMMENTS 
None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  
None. 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE 
Regular Assembly Meeting February 10, 2022. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
JOSEPHINE moved to adjourn and second by DENISE.  Hearing no more, the meeting adjourned at 5:04 
p.m. 
 
 
             
Mayor Alvin D. Osterback    Glennora Dushkin, Acting Clerk 
 
Date:      



FINANCIAL REPORT 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



INVESTMENT REPORT 



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception to
Date

Portfolio 3.05 4.54 14.84 14.84 6.90
Benchmark 3.14 4.53 14.39 14.39 6.74

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

P
er

ce
nt

 T
ot

al
 R

e
tu

rn
 (

G
ro

ss
)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
Equity Blend

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Fixed Income
34%

US Lg Cap
25%

US Md Cap
7%

US Sm Cap
3%

Int'l
11%

Emer Mkts
5%

Real Estate
11%

Diversified 
Alternatives

4%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Blake Phillips, CFA®
Blake@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Brandy Niclai, CFA®

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-21 47,135,490

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -1,140
Change in Market Value 739,815
Interest 13,378
Dividends 683,336

Portfolio Value on 12-31-21 48,570,879

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2021



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY AND TARGET
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

December 31, 2021

%
Asset Class & Target Market Value Assets Range

FIXED INCOME  (34%)
US Fixed Income  (19.0%) 7,762,707 16.0 10% to 30%

TIPS  (10.0%) 4,737,589 9.8 0% to 15%

Cash  (5.0%) 3,827,983 7.9 0% to 10%

Subtotal:  16,328,280 33.6

EQUITY  (51%)
US Large Cap  (24.0%) 12,270,205 25.3 18% to 30%

US Mid Cap  (7.0%) 3,454,991 7.1 2% to 12%

US Small Cap  (3.0%) 1,465,155 3.0 0% to 6%

Developed International Equity  (12.0%) 5,574,862 11.5 6% to 18%

Emerging Markets  (5.0%) 2,226,373 4.6 0% to 10%

Subtotal:  24,991,586 51.5

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS  (15%)
Real Estate  (5.0%) 2,597,249 5.3 0% to 10%

Infrastructure  (5.0%) 2,562,443 5.3 0% to 10%

Commodities  (5.0%) 2,091,322 4.3 0% to 10%

Subtotal:  7,251,014 14.9

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 48,570,879 100



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
December 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

FNMA & FHLMC
5,649 FHLMC POOL G14203 104.56 5,906 105.25 5,945 0.01 226 19 -0.27

4.000% Due 04-01-26
52,279 FG J32364 101.51 53,067 103.89 54,314 0.11 1,307 109 0.84

2.500% Due 11-01-28
80,471 FNCI POOL AS6305 103.77 83,501 105.15 84,613 0.17 2,414 201 1.19

3.000% Due 12-01-30
88,366 FNCI POOL BC2737 103.04 91,048 103.76 91,689 0.19 2,209 184 1.25

2.500% Due 05-01-31
26,022 FNMA POOL MA3588 101.48 26,409 105.63 27,487 0.06 911 76 1.58

3.500% Due 02-01-34
Accrued Interest 589 0.00

259,931 264,637 0.54 589

CORPORATE BONDS
150,000 AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES 100.82 151,224 101.59 152,392 0.31 4,275 1,259 1.51

2.850% Due 03-15-23
150,000 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 97.83 146,749 102.17 153,249 0.32 3,300 1,237 0.85

2.200% Due 08-16-23
150,000 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 105.18 157,771 105.86 158,794 0.33 5,812 2,422 1.02

3.875% Due 02-01-24
150,000 METLIFE INC 105.46 158,197 105.54 158,317 0.33 5,400 1,215 1.12

3.600% Due 04-10-24
150,000 WELLS FARGO & COMPANY 99.88 149,823 105.17 157,752 0.32 4,950 1,540 1.33

3.300% Due 09-09-24
150,000 KIMCO REALTY CORP 94.92 142,377 105.10 157,654 0.32 4,950 2,062 1.60

3.300% Due 02-01-25
150,000 APPLIED MATERIALS INC 107.96 161,934 108.95 163,420 0.34 5,850 1,462 1.44

3.900% Due 10-01-25
150,000 CITIGROUP INC 101.65 152,470 108.13 162,192 0.33 5,550 2,605 1.61

3.700% Due 01-12-26
150,000 TARGET CORP 96.45 144,670 104.66 156,997 0.32 3,750 792 1.37

2.500% Due 04-15-26
20,000 DARDEN RESTAURANTS INC 110.59 22,118 108.25 21,650 0.04 770 128 2.20

3.850% Due 05-01-27
150,000 LOWE'S COS INC 100.05 150,073 106.69 160,038 0.33 4,650 749 1.78

3.100% Due 05-03-27
50,000 SOUTHWEST AIRLINES CO 116.77 58,384 114.32 57,161 0.12 2,562 114 2.31

5.125% Due 06-15-27
70,000 BORGWARNER INC 107.34 75,137 103.31 72,318 0.15 1,855 927 2.01

2.650% Due 07-01-27
50,000 ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV WORLDWIDE 114.31 57,154 111.23 55,615 0.11 2,000 433 2.08

4.000% Due 04-13-28

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
December 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

50,000 DISCOVER BANK 115.95 57,974 113.47 56,734 0.12 2,325 697 2.46
4.650% Due 09-13-28

45,000 NATIONAL RETAIL PROP INC 113.12 50,904 112.43 50,592 0.10 1,935 408 2.31
4.300% Due 10-15-28

75,000 KLA CORP 118.78 89,088 112.88 84,658 0.17 3,075 905 2.16
4.100% Due 03-15-29

50,000 CENOVUS ENERGY INC 112.18 56,088 110.64 55,318 0.11 2,200 464 2.78
4.400% Due 04-15-29

70,000 CONOCOPHILLIPS COMPANY 138.92 97,243 131.56 92,093 0.19 4,865 1,027 2.23
6.950% Due 04-15-29

75,000 KANSAS CITY SOUTHERN 107.84 80,877 103.56 77,667 0.16 2,156 276 2.38
2.875% Due 11-15-29

50,000 INTEL CORP 113.48 56,742 113.59 56,794 0.12 1,950 520 2.09
3.900% Due 03-25-30

70,000 MAGELLAN MIDSTREAM PARTN 111.17 77,820 105.02 73,517 0.15 2,275 190 2.58
3.250% Due 06-01-30

50,000 SCHLUMBERGER INVESTMENT 102.87 51,433 102.47 51,235 0.11 1,325 18 2.33
2.650% Due 06-26-30

50,000 CANADIAN NATL RESOURCES 102.97 51,485 101.24 50,619 0.10 1,475 680 2.78
2.950% Due 07-15-30

95,000 SIMON PROPERTY GROUP LP 104.58 99,348 101.87 96,778 0.20 2,517 1,161 2.41
2.650% Due 07-15-30

50,000 HEALTHPEAK PROPERTIES 103.48 51,740 103.99 51,996 0.11 1,437 663 2.38
2.875% Due 01-15-31

50,000 OMEGA HLTHCARE INVESTORS 101.92 50,959 100.72 50,362 0.10 1,687 703 3.28
3.375% Due 02-01-31

50,000 VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS 101.05 50,525 100.89 50,445 0.10 1,275 354 2.44
2.550% Due 03-21-31

40,000 KOHL'S CORPORATION 99.80 39,921 101.84 40,737 0.08 1,350 225 3.14
3.375% Due 05-01-31
Accrued Interest 25,240 0.05

2,690,232 2,752,342 5.67 25,240

DOMESTIC FIXED INCOME FUNDS/ETF
92,171 VANGUARD SHORT-TERM TIPS ETF 49.57 4,569,057 51.40 4,737,589 9.75 NA

DOMESTIC LARGE CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
4,131 FLEXSHARES QUAL DIV ETF 40.51 167,350 61.34 253,396 0.52 NA

25,193 ISHARES S&P 500 INDEX FUND 314.99 7,935,523 476.99 12,016,809 24.74 NA

8,102,873 12,270,205 25.26

DOMESTIC MID CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
12,205 ISHARES CORE S&P MIDCAP 400 ETF 138.36 1,688,710 283.08 3,454,991 7.11 NA

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
December 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

DOMESTIC SMALL CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
12,795 ISHARES S&P SMALLCAP 600 INDEX ETF 77.24 988,229 114.51 1,465,155 3.02 NA

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
74,690 ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI EAFE 65.55 4,895,633 74.64 5,574,862 11.48 NA

EMERGING MARKET FUNDS/ETF
37,193 ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI EMERGING MKTS 44.65 1,660,690 59.86 2,226,373 4.58 NA

REAL ESTATE & INFRASTRUCTURE
44,680 FLEXSHAR STX GLOBAL BROAD INF ETF 50.81 2,270,353 57.35 2,562,443 5.28 NA
23,386 JPMORGAN BETABUILDERS MSCI US REIT ETF 79.40 1,856,870 111.06 2,597,249 5.35 NA

4,127,223 5,159,692 10.62

COMMODITIES
42,266 iSHARES BB ROLL SELECT COMMODITY ETF 37.76 1,595,870 49.48 2,091,322 4.31 NA

U.S. TREASURY 
215,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.88 214,740 100.80 216,722 0.45 3,762 1,738 0.27

1.750% Due 07-15-22
135,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.72 134,620 102.47 138,339 0.28 3,544 1,204 0.49

2.625% Due 02-28-23
15,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.96 14,994 99.54 14,931 0.03 19 5 0.50

0.125% Due 03-31-23
90,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.95 89,954 99.38 89,441 0.18 112 10 0.57

0.125% Due 05-31-23
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.00 99,996 99.28 99,277 0.20 125 58 0.60

0.125% Due 07-15-23
230,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.48 228,805 99.12 227,978 0.47 287 96 0.66

0.125% Due 08-31-23
250,000 US TREASURY NOTES 102.36 255,898 101.68 254,200 0.52 4,062 696 0.70

1.625% Due 10-31-23
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.56 99,559 99.18 99,176 0.20 250 32 0.69

0.250% Due 11-15-23
70,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.87 69,912 98.85 69,196 0.14 87 4 0.72

0.125% Due 12-15-23
250,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.06 247,646 98.69 246,737 0.51 118 0.75

0.125% Due 02-15-24
50,000 US TREASURY NOTE 99.79 49,896 98.80 49,402 0.10 125 37 0.80

0.250% Due 03-15-24
275,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.86 277,363 102.79 282,681 0.58 5,500 15 0.87

2.000% Due 06-30-24
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.23 200,453 103.83 207,664 0.43 4,750 1,794 0.89

2.375% Due 08-15-24* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
December 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

250,000 US TREASURY NOTES 98.29 245,723 97.78 244,452 0.50 937 161 1.05
0.375% Due 04-30-25

610,000 US TREASURY NOTES 97.16 592,673 103.13 629,111 1.30 12,200 4,608 1.12
2.000% Due 08-15-25

80,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.51 79,606 98.10 78,482 0.16 600 153 1.21
0.750% Due 03-31-26

180,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.87 179,775 97.24 175,028 0.36 1,125 471 1.25
0.625% Due 07-31-26

250,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.48 248,691 101.13 252,832 0.52 3,750 1,416 1.25
1.500% Due 08-15-26

180,000 US TREASURY NOTES 97.14 174,860 103.44 186,194 0.38 3,600 467 1.27
2.000% Due 11-15-26

70,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.90 69,929 94.98 66,487 0.14 262 110 1.31
0.375% Due 07-31-27

80,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.04 79,228 94.65 75,722 0.16 300 77 1.35
0.375% Due 09-30-27

85,000 US TREASURY NOTES 105.61 89,765 104.99 89,240 0.18 1,912 248 1.36
2.250% Due 11-15-27

80,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.93 79,941 95.78 76,622 0.16 500 44 1.37
0.625% Due 11-30-27

85,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.59 84,651 99.11 84,243 0.17 1,062 273 1.40
1.250% Due 03-31-28

25,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.43 25,107 99.09 24,772 0.05 312 54 1.40
1.250% Due 04-30-28

125,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.04 125,049 109.21 136,514 0.28 3,594 1,357 1.41
2.875% Due 08-15-28

125,000 US TREASURY NOTES 103.28 129,097 111.15 138,940 0.29 3,906 507 1.42
3.125% Due 11-15-28

90,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.39 90,352 100.52 90,464 0.19 1,350 510 1.43
1.500% Due 02-15-30

90,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.18 90,164 93.50 84,150 0.17 562 73 1.45
0.625% Due 05-15-30

80,000 US TREASURY NOTE 98.89 79,109 93.26 74,606 0.15 500 189 1.46
0.625% Due 08-15-30

80,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.60 79,678 95.07 76,059 0.16 700 91 1.47
0.875% Due 11-15-30

100,000 US TREASURY NOTE 95.37 95,375 97.05 97,051 0.20 1,125 425 1.47
1.125% Due 02-15-31

50,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.89 50,445 101.27 50,633 0.10 812 105 1.48
1.625% Due 05-15-31
Accrued Interest 17,147 0.04

4,673,057 4,744,495 9.77 17,147

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
December 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

AGENCIES
100,000 FREDDIE MAC 100.00 100,000 97.99 97,990 0.20 450 121 1.14

0.450% Due 12-24-24
75,000 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 99.90 74,925 98.04 73,530 0.15 450 155 1.15

0.600% Due 08-27-25
75,000 FHLB 104.27 78,201 101.23 75,923 0.16 1,219 369 1.38

1.625% Due 03-12-27
Accrued Interest 645 0.00

253,126 248,089 0.51 645

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
DIVIDEND ACCRUAL 10,681 10,681 0.02
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

3,570,447 3,570,447 7.35

3,581,128 3,581,128 7.37
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 39,085,759 48,570,879 100 158,759 43,622

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY 
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount

DEPOSITS AND EXPENSES
MANAGEMENT FEES

12-31-21 12-31-21 MANAGEMENT FEES 6,808.30
6,808.30

Dividend
COMMODITIES

12-17-21 12-17-21 iSHARES BB ROLL 
SELECT COMMODITY ETF

336,520.71

DOMESTIC FIXED INCOME FUNDS/ETF
12-29-21 12-29-21 VANGUARD 

SHORT-TERM TIPS ETF
88,318.25

DOMESTIC LARGE CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
12-17-21 12-17-21 ISHARES S&P 500 INDEX 

FUND
37,748.79

12-23-21 12-23-21 FLEXSHARES QUAL DIV 
ETF

1,540.88

39,289.67

DOMESTIC MID CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
12-17-21 12-17-21 ISHARES CORE S&P 

MIDCAP 400 ETF
11,784.61

DOMESTIC SMALL CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
12-17-21 12-17-21 ISHARES S&P SMALLCAP 

600 INDEX ETF
9,394.95

EMERGING MARKET FUNDS/ETF
12-17-21 12-17-21 ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI 

EMERGING MKTS
50,632.21

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY 
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
12-17-21 12-17-21 ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI 

EAFE
95,395.71

12-30-21 01-05-22 ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI 
EAFE

8,192.90

103,588.61

REAL ESTATE & INFRASTRUCTURE
12-23-21 12-23-21 FLEXSHAR STX GLOBAL 

BROAD INF ETF
23,254.20

12-27-21 12-27-21 JPMORGAN 
BETABUILDERS MSCI US 
REIT ETF

18,064.75

12-30-21 01-04-22 FLEXSHAR STX GLOBAL 
BROAD INF ETF

2,488.32

43,807.27
683,336.28

Interest
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

12-01-21 12-01-21 FEDERATED 
GOVERNMENT 
OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI

59.49

CORPORATE BONDS
12-01-21 12-01-21 MAGELLAN MIDSTREAM 

PARTN
1,137.50

3.250% Due 06-01-30
12-15-21 12-15-21 SOUTHWEST AIRLINES CO 1,281.25

5.125% Due 06-15-27
12-27-21 12-27-21 SCHLUMBERGER 

INVESTMENT
662.50

2.650% Due 06-26-30

3,081.25
* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY 
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount

FNMA & FHLMC
12-15-21 12-15-21 FHLMC POOL G14203 19.53

4.000% Due 04-01-26
12-15-21 12-15-21 FG J32364 111.72

2.500% Due 11-01-28
12-27-21 12-27-21 FNCI POOL AS6305 203.05

3.000% Due 12-01-30
12-27-21 12-27-21 FNCI POOL BC2737 197.85

2.500% Due 05-01-31
12-27-21 12-27-21 FNMA POOL MA3588 79.50

3.500% Due 02-01-34

611.65

U.S. TREASURY 
12-15-21 12-15-21 US TREASURY NOTES 43.75

0.125% Due 12-15-23
12-31-21 12-31-21 US TREASURY NOTES 2,750.00

2.000% Due 06-30-24

2,793.75
6,546.14

PRINCIPAL PAYDOWNS
FNMA & FHLMC

12-15-21 12-15-21 FHLMC POOL G14203 211.80 211.80
4.000% Due 04-01-26

12-15-21 12-15-21 FG J32364 1,348.33 1,348.33
2.500% Due 11-01-28

12-27-21 12-27-21 FNCI POOL AS6305 750.08 750.08
3.000% Due 12-01-30

12-27-21 12-27-21 FNCI POOL BC2737 6,599.85 6,599.85
2.500% Due 05-01-31

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY 
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount

12-27-21 12-27-21 FNMA POOL MA3588 1,234.22 1,234.22
3.500% Due 02-01-34

10,144.28
10,144.28

Withdraw
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

12-14-21 12-14-21 FEDERATED 
GOVERNMENT 
OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI

1,139.98

1,139.98

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
REALIZED GAINS AND LOSSES

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
From 12-01-21 Through 12-31-21

Avg. Cost
Date Quantity Security Basis Proceeds Gain Or Loss

12-15-21 211.80 FHLMC POOL G14203 221.46 211.80 -9.66
4.000% Due 04-01-26

12-15-21 1,348.33 FG J32364 1,368.66 1,348.33 -20.33
2.500% Due 11-01-28

12-27-21 750.08 FNCI POOL AS6305 778.33 750.08 -28.25
3.000% Due 12-01-30

12-27-21 6,599.85 FNCI POOL BC2737 6,800.16 6,599.85 -200.31
2.500% Due 05-01-31

12-27-21 1,234.22 FNMA POOL MA3588 1,252.54 1,234.22 -18.32
3.500% Due 02-01-34

TOTAL GAINS 0.00
TOTAL LOSSES -276.87

10,421.15 10,144.28 -276.87



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Tran
Date Date Code Activity Security Amount

FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI
12-01-21 Beginning Balance 2,882,241.13
12-01-21 12-01-21 dp Interest FEDERATED GOVERNMENT 

OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI
59.49

12-01-21 12-01-21 dp Interest MAGELLAN MIDSTREAM 
PARTN

1,137.50

3.250% Due 06-01-30
12-14-21 12-14-21 wd Withdrawal from Portfolio -1,139.98
12-15-21 12-15-21 dp Interest SOUTHWEST AIRLINES CO 1,281.25

5.125% Due 06-15-27
12-15-21 12-15-21 dp Paydown FHLMC POOL G14203 211.80

4.000% Due 04-01-26
12-15-21 12-15-21 dp Interest FHLMC POOL G14203 19.53

4.000% Due 04-01-26
12-15-21 12-15-21 dp Interest FG J32364 111.72

2.500% Due 11-01-28
12-15-21 12-15-21 dp Paydown FG J32364 1,348.33

2.500% Due 11-01-28
12-15-21 12-15-21 dp Interest US TREASURY NOTES 43.75

0.125% Due 12-15-23
12-17-21 12-17-21 dp Dividend iSHARES BB ROLL SELECT 

COMMODITY ETF
336,520.71

12-17-21 12-17-21 dp Dividend ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI EAFE 95,395.71
12-17-21 12-17-21 dp Dividend ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI 

EMERGING MKTS
50,632.21

12-17-21 12-17-21 dp Dividend ISHARES CORE S&P MIDCAP 
400 ETF

11,784.61

12-17-21 12-17-21 dp Dividend ISHARES S&P SMALLCAP 600 
INDEX ETF

9,394.95

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Tran
Date Date Code Activity Security Amount

12-17-21 12-17-21 dp Dividend ISHARES S&P 500 INDEX FUND 37,748.79
12-23-21 12-23-21 dp Dividend FLEXSHAR STX GLOBAL 

BROAD INF ETF
23,254.20

12-23-21 12-23-21 dp Dividend FLEXSHARES QUAL DIV ETF 1,540.88
12-27-21 12-27-21 dp Interest SCHLUMBERGER INVESTMENT 662.50

2.650% Due 06-26-30
12-27-21 12-27-21 dp Dividend JPMORGAN BETABUILDERS 

MSCI US REIT ETF
18,064.75

12-27-21 12-27-21 dp Interest FNCI POOL AS6305 203.05
3.000% Due 12-01-30

12-27-21 12-27-21 dp Paydown FNCI POOL AS6305 750.08
3.000% Due 12-01-30

12-27-21 12-27-21 dp Interest FNCI POOL BC2737 197.85
2.500% Due 05-01-31

12-27-21 12-27-21 dp Paydown FNCI POOL BC2737 6,599.85
2.500% Due 05-01-31

12-27-21 12-27-21 dp Paydown FNMA POOL MA3588 1,234.22
3.500% Due 02-01-34

12-27-21 12-27-21 dp Interest FNMA POOL MA3588 79.50
3.500% Due 02-01-34

12-29-21 12-29-21 dp Dividend VANGUARD SHORT-TERM TIPS 
ETF

88,318.25

12-31-21 12-31-21 dp Interest US TREASURY NOTES 2,750.00
2.000% Due 06-30-24

12-31-21 Ending Balance 3,570,446.63

DIVIDEND ACCRUAL
12-01-21 Beginning Balance 0.00
12-30-21 01-05-22 dp Dividend ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI EAFE 8,192.90

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Tran
Date Date Code Activity Security Amount

12-30-21 01-04-22 dp Dividend FLEXSHAR STX GLOBAL 
BROAD INF ETF

2,488.32

12-31-21 Ending Balance 10,681.22

* Callable security



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

-0.20

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio -0.01 -0.02 0.03 0.03 1.46
Benchmark 0.00 0.01 0.05 0.05 1.26

P
e

rc
e

nt
 T

ot
a

l R
et

u
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
FTSE 3-Month TBill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 0.20%   Average Maturity: 0.36 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-21 2,672,767

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -141
Change in Market Value -1,765
Interest 1,492
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 12-31-21 2,672,353 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Cash
71%

US Treas
29%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Blake Phillips, CFA®
Blake@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Paul Hanson, CFA®

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

AEB OPERATING FUND
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2021



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

AEB OPERATING FUND
December 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

U.S. TREASURY 
365,000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.40 370,104 100.08 365,292 13.67 9,125 4,215 0.53

2.500% Due 01-15-22
150,000 US TREASURY NOTES 102.02 153,023 100.45 150,676 5.64 3,562 1,063 0.17

2.375% Due 03-15-22
250,000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.63 254,072 100.80 252,002 9.43 4,375 2,021 0.27

1.750% Due 07-15-22
Accrued Interest 7,299 0.27

777,200 775,270 29.01 7,299

TREASURY BILLS
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.98 299,931 100.00 299,988 11.23 NA 0 0.03

0.000% Due 02-24-22
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.98 299,930 99.99 299,967 11.22 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 03-17-22
300,000 US TREASURY BILL 99.97 299,916 99.98 299,928 11.22 NA 0 0.07

0.000% Due 04-28-22
310,000 US TREASURY BILL 99.96 309,865 99.96 309,864 11.60 NA 0 0.10

0.000% Due 06-02-22
375,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.92 374,713 99.88 374,546 14.02 NA 0 0.20

0.000% Due 08-11-22
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.90 299,709 99.80 299,412 11.20 NA 0 0.26

0.000% Due 10-06-22

1,884,065 1,883,705 70.49 0

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

13,378 13,378 0.50

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 2,674,642 2,672,353 100 17,062 7,299



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY 
AEB OPERATING FUND

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount

PURCHASES
TREASURY BILLS

12-02-21 12-03-21 US TREASURY BILL 310,000 309,865.18
0.000% Due 06-02-22

309,865.18

DEPOSITS AND EXPENSES
MANAGEMENT FEES

12-31-21 12-31-21 MANAGEMENT FEES 374.59
374.59

Interest
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

12-01-21 12-01-21 FEDERATED 
GOVERNMENT 
OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI

0.56

TREASURY BILLS
12-02-21 12-02-21 US TREASURY BILL 49.10

0.000% Due 12-02-21
49.66

SALES, MATURITIES, AND CALLS
TREASURY BILLS

12-02-21 12-02-21 US TREASURY BILL 310,000 309,950.90
0.000% Due 12-02-21

309,950.90

Withdraw
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

12-14-21 12-14-21 FEDERATED 
GOVERNMENT 
OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI

141.12

141.12



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
REALIZED GAINS AND LOSSES

AEB OPERATING FUND
From 12-01-21 Through 12-31-21

Avg. Cost
Date Quantity Security Basis Proceeds Gain Or Loss

12-02-21 310,000 US TREASURY BILL 309,950.90 309,950.90 0.00
0.000% Due 12-02-21

TOTAL GAINS 0.00
TOTAL LOSSES 0.00

309,950.90 309,950.90 0.00



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER
AEB OPERATING FUND

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Tran
Date Date Code Activity Security Amount

FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI
12-01-21 Beginning Balance 13,383.41
12-01-21 12-01-21 dp Interest FEDERATED GOVERNMENT 

OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI
0.56

12-02-21 12-03-21 wd Purchase US TREASURY BILL -309,865.18
0.000% Due 06-02-22

12-02-21 12-02-21 dp Interest US TREASURY BILL 49.10
0.000% Due 12-02-21

12-02-21 12-02-21 dp Sale US TREASURY BILL 309,950.90
0.000% Due 12-02-21

12-14-21 12-14-21 wd Withdrawal from Portfolio -141.12
12-31-21 Ending Balance 13,377.67



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

-0.20

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio -0.01 -0.01 0.04 0.04 1.43
Benchmark 0.00 0.01 0.05 0.05 1.20

P
e

rc
e

nt
 T

ot
a

l R
et

u
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
FTSE 3-Month TBill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 0.20%   Average Maturity: 0.35 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-21 2,610,138

Contributions 0
Withdrawals 0
Change in Market Value -1,482
Interest 1,292
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 12-31-21 2,609,948 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Cash
74%

US Treas
26%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Blake Phillips, CFA®
Blake@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Paul Hanson, CFA®

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH SERIES E BOND
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2021



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH SERIES E BOND
December 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

U.S. TREASURY 
365,000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.40 370,104 100.08 365,292 14.00 9,125 4,215 0.53

2.500% Due 01-15-22
50,000 US TREASURY NOTES 102.02 51,008 100.45 50,225 1.92 1,187 354 0.17

2.375% Due 03-15-22
250,000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.63 254,072 100.80 252,002 9.66 4,375 2,021 0.27

1.750% Due 07-15-22
Accrued Interest 6,591 0.25

675,184 674,111 25.83 6,591

TREASURY BILLS
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.98 299,931 100.00 299,988 11.49 NA 0 0.03

0.000% Due 02-24-22
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.98 299,930 99.99 299,967 11.49 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 03-17-22
300,000 US TREASURY BILL 99.97 299,916 99.98 299,928 11.49 NA 0 0.07

0.000% Due 04-28-22
315,000 US TREASURY BILL 99.96 314,863 99.96 314,861 12.06 NA 0 0.10

0.000% Due 06-02-22
410,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.96 409,828 99.94 409,754 15.70 NA 0 0.13

0.000% Due 06-16-22
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.90 299,709 99.80 299,412 11.47 NA 0 0.26

0.000% Due 10-06-22

1,924,178 1,923,910 73.71 0

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

11,927 11,927 0.46

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 2,611,289 2,609,948 100 14,687 6,591

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY 
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH SERIES E BOND

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount

PURCHASES
TREASURY BILLS

12-02-21 12-03-21 US TREASURY BILL 315,000 314,863.01
0.000% Due 06-02-22

314,863.01

DEPOSITS AND EXPENSES
MANAGEMENT FEES

12-31-21 12-31-21 MANAGEMENT FEES 365.84
365.84

Interest
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

12-01-21 12-01-21 FEDERATED 
GOVERNMENT 
OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI

2.97

TREASURY BILLS
12-02-21 12-02-21 US TREASURY BILL 49.89

0.000% Due 12-02-21
52.86

SALES, MATURITIES, AND CALLS
TREASURY BILLS

12-02-21 12-02-21 US TREASURY BILL 315,000 314,950.11
0.000% Due 12-02-21

314,950.11

* Callable security



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
REALIZED GAINS AND LOSSES

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH SERIES E BOND
From 12-01-21 Through 12-31-21

Avg. Cost
Date Quantity Security Basis Proceeds Gain Or Loss

12-02-21 315,000 US TREASURY BILL 314,950.11 314,950.11 0.00
0.000% Due 12-02-21

TOTAL GAINS 0.00
TOTAL LOSSES 0.00

314,950.11 314,950.11 0.00



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH SERIES E BOND

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Tran
Date Date Code Activity Security Amount

FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI
12-01-21 Beginning Balance 11,786.87
12-01-21 12-01-21 dp Interest FEDERATED GOVERNMENT 

OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI
2.97

12-02-21 12-03-21 wd Purchase US TREASURY BILL -314,863.01
0.000% Due 06-02-22

12-02-21 12-02-21 dp Interest US TREASURY BILL 49.89
0.000% Due 12-02-21

12-02-21 12-02-21 dp Sale US TREASURY BILL 314,950.11
0.000% Due 12-02-21

12-31-21 Ending Balance 11,926.83

* Callable security



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

-0.40

-0.20

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio -0.10 -0.26 -0.21 -0.21 0.85
Benchmark -0.10 -0.28 -0.28 -0.28 0.83

P
e

rc
e

nt
 T

ot
a

l R
et

u
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
50% Bloomberg  1-3 Yr Gov/50% FTSE 

3mo Tbill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 0.32%   Average Maturity: 0.86 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-21 1,072,232

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -45
Change in Market Value -1,187
Interest 160
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 12-31-21 1,071,160 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Cash
52%

US Treas
48%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Blake Phillips, CFA®
Blake@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Paul Hanson, CFA®

Contact Phone Number: 907/272-7575

AEB 2010 SERIES B BOND/AKUTAN AIR
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2021



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

AEB 2010 SERIES B BOND/AKUTAN AIR
December 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

U.S. TREASURY 
55,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.43 55,234 101.40 55,771 5.21 962 403 0.45

1.750% Due 01-31-23
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.80 99,805 99.46 99,465 9.29 125 21 0.53

0.125% Due 04-30-23
40,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.91 39,964 99.43 39,770 3.71 50 6 0.55

0.125% Due 05-15-23
70,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.20 70,137 99.53 69,674 6.50 175 8 0.57

0.250% Due 06-15-23
70,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.82 69,877 99.09 69,360 6.48 87 26 0.67

0.125% Due 09-15-23
65,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.36 64,584 98.74 64,180 5.99 81 38 0.75

0.125% Due 01-15-24
15,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.71 14,956 98.64 14,796 1.38 37 5 0.83

0.250% Due 05-15-24
20,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.34 19,869 98.53 19,705 1.84 50 2 0.86

0.250% Due 06-15-24
85,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.76 84,794 98.59 83,798 7.82 319 95 0.91

0.375% Due 09-15-24
Accrued Interest 605 0.06

519,219 517,125 48.28 605

TREASURY BILLS
510,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.99 509,935 100.00 510,000 47.61 NA 0 0.00

0.000% Due 01-06-22
40,000 US TREASURY BILL 99.99 39,994 100.00 40,000 3.73 NA 0 0.01

0.000% Due 01-25-22

549,929 550,000 51.35 0

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

4,036 4,036 0.38

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 1,073,184 1,071,160 100 1,887 605



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY 
AEB 2010 SERIES B BOND/AKUTAN AIR

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount

DEPOSITS AND EXPENSES
MANAGEMENT FEES

12-31-21 12-31-21 MANAGEMENT FEES 150.15
150.15

Interest
U.S. TREASURY 

12-15-21 12-15-21 US TREASURY NOTES 87.50
0.250% Due 06-15-23

12-15-21 12-15-21 US TREASURY NOTES 25.00
0.250% Due 06-15-24

112.50
112.50

Withdraw
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

12-14-21 12-14-21 FEDERATED 
GOVERNMENT 
OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI

44.65

44.65



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
REALIZED GAINS AND LOSSES

AEB 2010 SERIES B BOND/AKUTAN AIR
From 12-01-21 Through 12-31-21

Avg. Cost
Date Quantity Security Basis Proceeds Gain Or Loss

TOTAL GAINS 0.00
TOTAL LOSSES 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER
AEB 2010 SERIES B BOND/AKUTAN AIR

From 12-01-21 To 12-31-21

Trade Settle Tran
Date Date Code Activity Security Amount

FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS INSTITUTI
12-01-21 Beginning Balance 3,968.16
12-14-21 12-14-21 wd Withdrawal from Portfolio -44.65
12-15-21 12-15-21 dp Interest US TREASURY NOTES 87.50

0.250% Due 06-15-23
12-15-21 12-15-21 dp Interest US TREASURY NOTES 25.00

0.250% Due 06-15-24
12-31-21 Ending Balance 4,036.01



CONSENT AGENDA 



1 | P a g e  

 

 

  

  

 
 

Agenda Statement 

 

Date:   January 31, 2022 

 

To:  Aleutians East Borough Platting Board 

 

From:  Anne Bailey, Borough Administrator 

 

Re: Resolution 22-29 Approving the State of Alaska Final Easement and Survey for ADL 

228613  

 

In June 2004 the Department of Natural Resource (DNR) Division of Mining, Land and Water 

(DMLW) Southcentral Regional Office (SCRO or the Region) issued an easement decision to 

approve installation of two hovercraft landing terminals and segment of public access road over 

state tide and submerged lands underlying Cold Bay on southern end of the Alaska Peninsula. 

The location is located within Sections 4, 9, 15 and 16 of Township 58 South, Range 87 West, 

Seward Meridian and Section 17, Township 57 South, Range 87 West, Seward Meridian, in the 

Aleutian Islands Recording District. The easement is approximately 12,688 feet in length and of 

variable width for a total of 7.36 acres, more or less.  

 

This easement was requested by the Borough as one component of a project to develop a year-

round transportation link between the Cold Bay Airport and the community of King Cove. This 

easement was first amended in 2005 when SCRO approved the Borough’s requested realignment 

of the public access road and was amended a second time in March 2018 which entirely excluded 

one of the previously authorized hovercraft landing terminal sites and repurpose the intended 

function of the other.  

 

One of the requirements by the State is to complete an as-built survey according to DMLW’s 

standards. In December 2019, the Borough hired Stantec to complete the survey. Stantec has 

completed their work and the State has provided the Borough with the copy of the survey and 

Final Easement document for ADL 228613, King Cove Access Road on State of Alaska 

Tidelands.  

 

AEB Municipal Code section 40.05.105(a) states that “in the event that the Aleutians East 

Borough Planning Commission is unable to meet, then the Aleutians East Borough Assembly 

shall act as the Aleutians East Borough Platting Board.” Platting Board Resolution 22-03, was 



2 | P a g e  

 

approved by the Platting Board at the January 10, 2022 meeting. Resolution 22-29 expresses the 

Assembly’s approval of the final easement and survey for ADL 228613.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Administration recommends approval of Resolution 22-03 Approving the State of Alaska Final 

29Easement and Survey for ADL 228613.  

 



 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 22-29 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH PLATTING BOARD 

APPROVING THE STATE OF ALASKA FINAL EASEMENT AND SURVEY FOR ADL 

228613 

 

WHEREAS, in June 2004 the Department of Natural Resource (DNR) Division of 

Mining, Land and Water (DMLW) Southcentral Regional Office (SCRO or the Region) issued 

an easement decision to approve installation of two hovercraft landing terminals and segment of 

public access road over state tide and submerged lands underlying Cold Bay on southern end of 

the Alaska Peninsula; and  

WHEREAS, this easement was requested by the Borough as one component of a project 

to develop a year-round transportation link between the Cold Bay Airport and the community of 

King Cove; and 

WHEREAS, the easement was first amended in 2005 when SCRO approved the 

Borough’s requested realignment of the public access road and was amended a second time in 

March 2018 which entirely excluded one of the previously authorized hovercraft landing 

terminal sites and repurpose the intended function of the other; and 

WHEREAS, one of the requirements by the State is to complete an as-built survey 

according to DMLW’s standards; and  

WHEREAS, in December 2019 the Borough hired Stantec to complete the survey; and   

WHEREAS, Stantec has completed the survey and the State has provided the Borough 

with the copy of the survey and final easement documents for ADL 228613, King Cove Access 

Road on State of Alaska Tidelands; and 

WHEREAS, at the January 10, 2022 Assembly Meeting, the Platting Board met and 

approved Resolution No. 22-03 which was authorized via Section 40.05.105(a) of the AEB 

Municipal Code.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly 

approves the final easement and survey for ADL 228613. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Aleutians East Borough on this 10th day of February, 

2022.  

 

_______________________________ 

Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 



 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Beverly Rosete, Clerk 

 

































PUBLIC HEARING 



ORDINANCES 



1 | P a g e  

 

 

  

  

 
 

Agenda Statement 

 

Date:   January 31, 2022 

 

To:  Mayor Osterback and Assembly 

 

From:  Anne Bailey, Administrator 

 

Re: Ordinance 22-09 authorizing the Mayor to negotiate and execute a sublease within the 

Cold Bay Terminal for air transportation services 

 

The Aleutians East Borough Code Section 50.10.060 provides that “[d]isposal of real property 

may be by sealed bids, outcry auction, lottery, first-come, first-served, negotiation, or such other 

method as the assembly may provide in the resolution authorizing the disposal.” Resolution 20-

23 authorizing the Mayor to negotiate a sublease with airlines for a portion of the Cold Bay 

Terminal and adjacent apron was approved by the Assembly at the October 10, 2019 Regular 

Meeting. This Ordinance authorizes the Mayor to negotiate a sublease with Aleutian Airways for 

the use of the Terminal.  

 

Aleutian Airways has expressed their desire to enter into a sublease with the Aleutians East  

Borough (“Borough”) for a portion of the Cold Bay Terminal Building (“Terminal”) and 

adjacent apron  for the purpose of providing Air Transportation which consists of the carriage of 

persons, property, cargo and mail by aircraft and associated services. The Terminal and adjacent 

apron are located within the Cold Bay Terminal on the Cold Bay Airport, in Section 36, 

Township 57 South, Range 89 West, Seward Meridian, within the Aleutian Island Recording 

District, Third Judicial District, Alaska; Lot 1A, Block 23 consisting of approximately 66,688 

square feet of land, at Cold Bay Terminal and adjacent Apron.  

 

The sublease is subject to the following minimum essential terms and conditions: 

 

1. The covenants, provisions, conditions, and base terms of the Lease Agreement ADA-

08250, “Base Lease” between the State of Alaska, Department of Transportation and 

Public Facilities and the Borough; 

2. The term of this sublease is contingent on the Borough’s Base Lease extension with the 

State of Alaska;  



2 | P a g e  

 

3. The leased property shall be used by Aleutian Airways for the purpose of providing Air 

Transportation which consists of the carriage of persons, property, cargo and mail by 

aircraft and associated services; 

4. The sublease term will be determined during the negotiations with the airlines.  

5. The sublease rents, fees, and charges will be determined by calculating the terminal area 

rentals and fees and will be finalized after the negotiations with the airlines. The sublease 

rents, fees and charges will not be less than market value. 

6. Aleutian Airways shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and approvals 

for its operations on the leased property; 

7. Aleutian Airways shall, to the fullest extent of the law, indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless both the Borough and the State of Alaska, their agents, elected officials, 

volunteers, and employees from and against any and all claims related to or arising out of 

Aleutian Airways’ use of the leased property. 

8. The sublease shall include all provisions of Borough Code of Ordinances not in conflict 

with this ordinance; and any other provisions that the Borough Mayor determines to be in 

the public interest. 

As outlined above, the term and rental rate will be finalized during negotiations. The sublease 

rents, fees and charges will not be less than market value.   

 

Aleutian Airways would like to begin passenger transportation in the spring of 2022. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Administration recommends approval of Ordinance 20-09 authorizing the Mayor to negotiate 

and execute a sublease within the Cold Bay Terminal for air transportation services.    



 1 

 
 

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 

 

  ORDINANCE SERIAL NO. 22-09 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE A 

SUBLEASE WITHIN THE COLD BAY TERMINAL FOR AIR TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

 

 WHEREAS, Aleutian Airways has expressed its desire to enter into a sublease with the 

Aleutians East  Borough (“Borough”) for a portion of the Cold Bay Terminal Building (“Terminal”) 

and adjacent apron, as generally depicted on the attached  Exhibit “A”, for the purpose of providing 

Air Transportation which consists of the carriage of persons, property, cargo and mail by aircraft and 

associated services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Borough has entered into a Lease Agreement No. ADA-08250  as Lessee 

with the State of Alaska, Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF) as the Lessor 

for the following described property, located on the Cold Bay Airport, in Section 36, Township 57 

South, Range 89 West, Seward Meridian, within the Aleutian Island Recording District, Third Judicial 

District, Alaska; Lot 1A, Block 23 consisting of approximately 66,688 square feet of land, at Cold Bay 

Terminal and adjacent Apron; and  

 

 WHEREAS, AEBMC Sec. 50.10.060 provides that “[d]isposal of real property may be by 

sealed bids, outcry auction, lottery, first-come, first-served, negotiation, or such other method as the 

assembly may provide in the resolution authorizing the disposal”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, AEBMC 50.10.100(7) provides that “‘Real Property" includes interests in real 

property as well as rights to real property, and includes, but is not limited to, leases, easements, security 

interests, licenses, permits and options.”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, AEBMC Sec. 50.10.050 provides for the disposal of real property owned by the 

Borough mandating that the disposal of real property not covered by other sections within chapter 

50.10 “must be authorized by ordinance and must contain” the following: 

 

(1) a description of the property, 

(2) a finding and the facts that supports the finding that the property or interest is no longer 

required for a public purpose if the property or interest is or was used for a government 

purpose, 

(3) the type of interest to be disposed of if less than a fee interest, 

(4) conditions and reservations that are to be imposed upon the property, 



 2 

(5) the fair market value of the property, 

(6) the minimum disposal price of the real property, 

(7) the method of disposal, including time, place and dates when relevant, 

(8) special conditions for the disposal, including, when relevant, special qualifications of 

purchasers and purchase terms, and 

(9) a finding and the facts supporting the finding of the public benefits to be derived if the 

disposal is to be for less than market value; and 

 

WHEREAS, AEBMC Sec. 50.10.070(a) provides that “[u]nless otherwise provided in the 

resolution authorizing the disposal, the disposal shall be at not less than the fair market value as 

determined by a fee appraisal, by the borough’s assessor’s valuation, or by such reasonable estimates 

as the mayor or assembly, as appropriate, finds to be reliable or appropriate under the circumstances; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assembly finds that the lease of the property to Aleutian Airways is in the 

best interest of the Borough, and will help provide air service to the region and promote economic 

development within the Borough; and   

 

 WHEREAS, at the October 10, 2019 Assembly Meeting the Assembly approved Resolution 

20-23 authorizing the disposal of the real property via negotiations with the airlines; and   

 

WHEREAS, AEBMC Sec. 2.16.020 provides that “[t]he Mayor shall… (A) Direct and 

supervise the business of the borough to assure that all ordinances and resolutions are executed; and 

 

WHEREAS, AEBMC Sec. 50.10.090 provides that “[t]he mayor may establish procedures 

and forms for the processing of requests, applications and disposals under this chapter. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED: 

 

Section 1. Classification.  This is a non-code ordinance. 

 

Section 2. Authorization to Lease.  Based upon the above findings, the Mayor is 

authorized to negotiate and execute a sublease with Aleutian Airways for a 

portion of  the Cold Bay Terminal and adjacent apron located on the Cold Bay 

Airport, in Section 36, Township 57 South, Range 89 West, Seward Meridian, 

within the Aleutian Island Recording District, Third Judicial District, Alaska; 

Lot 1A, Block 23 consisting of approximately 66,688 square feet of land, as 

generally depicted in Exhibits “A.” 

 

Section 3. Minimum Essential Terms and Conditions.  The sublease is subject to the 

following minimum essential terms and conditions: 

 

(a) The sublease shall be subject to the covenants, provisions, conditions, and 

base terms of the Lease Agreement ADA-08250, “Base Lease” between 



 3 

the State of Alaska, Department of Transportation and Public Facilities and 

the Borough; 

(b) The term of this sublease is contingent on the Borough’s Base Lease 

extension with the State of Alaska;  

(c) The leased property shall be used by Aleutian Airways for the purpose of 

providing Air Transportation which consists of the carriage of persons, 

property, cargo and mail by aircraft and associated services; 

(d) The sublease term will be determined during the negotiations with the 

airlines.  

(e) The sublease rents, fees, and charges will be determined by calculating the 

terminal area rentals and fees and will be finalized after the negotiations 

with the airlines. The sublease rents, fees and charges will not be less than 

market value. 

(f) Aleutian Airways shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits 

and approvals for its operations on the leased property; 

(g) Aleutian Airways shall, to the fullest extent of the law, indemnify, defend, 

and hold harmless both the Borough and the State of Alaska, their agents, 

elected officials, volunteers, and employees from and against any and all 

claims related to or arising out of Aleutian Airways’ use of the leased 

property; and 

(h) The sublease shall include all provisions of Borough Code of Ordinances 

not in conflict with this ordinance; and any other provisions that the 

Borough Mayor determines to be in the public interest. 

Section 4. Effectiveness. This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption by the Aleutians 

East Borough Assembly.  

 

INTRODUCED: __________________________________ 

 

ADOPTED:  __________________________________ 

 

 

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH, ALASKA 

 

       

      __________________________________________ 

      Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 

 

      Date: _____________________________________ 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Beverly Rosete, Clerk 

 

Date: _______________________________ 

         





RESOLUTIONS 



 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 22-30 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY RELATING 

TO DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS, OBSOLETE, OR UNNEEDED SUPPLIES  

 

WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough (“Borough”) has acquired certain personal property for 

the purpose of carrying out services in the public interest; and 

WHEREAS, certain items of personal property of the Borough have become worn out, obsolete, 

or are no longer needed by the Borough; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough has deemed it unnecessary to maintain ownership of the surplus 

personal property of the Borough; and  

WHEREAS, the Borough desires to dispose of the following surplus property: 

a) 1996 International MD/HD 4700 7.6L Fl Turbo Diesel 6cyl Truck -

information is as follows;  

• 7, 738 Miles.  

• 3,000 Gallon fuel tank with 100ft hose ground reel.  

• Gallon meter pump.  

 

Minimum bid of $12,000 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Aleutians East Borough Assembly as 

follows: 

Section 1. The Borough Assembly finds and declares that the Borough no longer has use for 

the surplus property listed above. 

Section 2. The Purchasing Officer is authorized and directed to conduct a surplus auction by 

sealed bid for the purpose of selling the surplus property to the highest bidder after public notice. 

Section 3.  In case of a tie, the successful bidder shall be determined by publicly drawing lots 

at a time and place specified by the Purchasing Officer, always selling to the highest responsible 

bidder or bidders for cash. 

Section 4. The Purchasing Officer is authorized to repeatedly reject all bids and advertise 

and give notice again. 



 

 

Section 5. If there are no bidders, the Purchasing Officer is authorized to sell such supplies, 

materials, equipment, or other personal property for the minimum value established prior to 

sealed bidding.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Aleutians East Borough on this 10th day of February, 2022.  

 

 

_______________________________ 

Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Beverly Rosete, Clerk 



OLD BUSINESS 



NEW BUSINESS 
SWAMC Presentation by SWAMC President Gronholdt



REPORTS AND UPDATES 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

To:  Honorable Mayor Osterback and AEB Assembly 

From:  Anne Bailey, Borough Administrator 

Subject: Assembly Report  

Date:  February 3, 2022 

 

CARES Act Funding Update 
 

Summary of Funding 

The Aleutians East Borough has received the $3,723,853.74 in CARES Act funds from the State 

of Alaska. On January 27, 2022, the Borough has expended the funds in their entirety. An 

overview of CARES Act funds expenditures through January 31, 2022, can be found below:  

 

Borough CARES Act Funding Program Allocations 

 
Borough CARES Act Expenditures  Funding Appropriated Funding Spent Funding Remaining  

 

EAES Program    $467,964.46  ($467,964.46) $0.00 

 

Non-Profit & Civic Organization Program $100,000.00  ($100,000.00) $0.00 

 

Cold Bay Community Center Conversion $400,000.00  ($400.000.00) $0.00 

 

PPE and Cleaning Supplies  $31,159.58  ($31,159.58) $0.00 

 

Payroll     $192,632.45  ($192,632.45) $0.00 

 

Legal Fees    $84,212.07  ($84,212.07) $0.00 

 

Telephone    $2,748.15  ($2,748.15) $0.00 

 

AML     $2,500.00  ($2,500.00) $0.00 

 

KSDP     $70,237.31  ($70,237.31) $0.00 

 

Election     $3,242.70  ($3,242.70) $0.00 

 

Southwest Governments   $3,029.10  ($3,029.10) $0.00 

 

Air Purification Systems – SP and KC  $82,489.00  ($82,489.00) $0.00 

 

Postponement or Revision of Projects $333,001.13  ($333,001.13) $0.00 

 

EAT     $152,894.14  ($152,894.14) $0.00 

 



2 | P a g e  
 

Food Distribution Program  $900,347.32  ($900,347.32) $0.00 

 

Telework Reimbursement Program  $8,798.97  ($8,798.97) $0.00 

 

Air Purification – FP and Akutan  $13,789.35  ($13,789.35) $0.00 

 

Cold Bay Benches   $3,117.68  ($3,117.68) $0.00 

 

Cold Bay Terminal   $871,690.32  ($871,690.32) $0.00 

 

TOTAL     $3,723,853.74  ($3,723,853.74) $0.00 

 

The final CARES Act Report was submitted to the State of Alaska on January 27, 2022. These funds have 

been expended in their entirety.  

 

Cold Bay Terminal 

• Terminal Expansion  
o Mechanical and electrical rough-in complete. 

o Taping and painting complete, doors installed, acoustical ceiling complete. 

o Sprinkler installation ongoing. 

o Finish items commenting, including installation of trim, flooring and ceiling 

lighting. 

o Plan to pour sidewalk to the week of February 7th.  

o Positive COVID cases have affected contractor workers and production. 

o Currently reviewing contractor barge delay claim. 

 

King Cove Road Update 
• Congress and the Department of Interior continue are beginning to focus on issues like 

ours but continue to be distracted by events not under the control of Congress. Two 

events make it unclear how much work Congress can accomplish in February or even 

March. First the retirement of Supreme Court Justice Stephen Breyer really complicates 

matters even though the President may not make his announcement of his nomination 

until the end of February. A further complication is Senator Ben Ray Lujan (DpNM) has 

just suffered a stroke. He will not be in Washington D.C. for at least a month. Since he is 

from New Mexico, there is no telling how this may affect Secretary Halland’s plans to 

visit King Cove.  

• 9th Circuit Appeal:  There is no change to report on the status of our case. A decision on 

this case is still pending.  As reported last month, Oral Argument was completed on 

August 4 and follow up letters re: the Secretary of Interior's visit to King Cove were filed 

as ordered by the Court.  At this point, there is no set timing for the Court to rule on this 

case.  We are hoping for a decision in this first quarter of 2022, but no timing can be 

counted upon. 

• Special Use Permit: As reported last month, the State DOT/PF filed an administrative 

appeal on October 14 before the US Fish and Wildlife Service.  No response has been 

received to this appeal yet. The State did not ask for or need any member of the King 

Cove Group to cosign the appeal letter. The State Attorneys drafted the appeal document 

to be comprehensive and covering a wide range of issues. The State filed the appeal 

because it was dissatisfied with the permit negotiations with the USFWS. 



3 | P a g e  
 

• Attorneys for the King Cove Group continue to meet with the State of Alaska attorneys to 

determine the next steps in this administrative appeal process. 
 

Akun Dock and Breakwater 
On February 1, 2022, Mayor Osterback and Administration met with the Army Corps of 

Engineers to discuss the Akun Dock and Breakwater project. The tentative schedule for the 

Corps is as follows: Alternatives Milestone – February 2022; Tentatively Selected Plan 

Milestone – April 2023; Agency Decision Milestone – August 2023; MSC Transmittal of Final 

Report – February 2024 and Final Report – July 2024.  

 

The Federal funding for FY22 has been received by the Corps for the subject study, in the 

amount of $350,000. The Corps will be requesting the cost-share funding in the amount of 

$350,000 from the Borough to allow them to use the Federal funds soon. Funds have already 

been appropriated to cover this match via the Borough’s Co-Sponsorship Agreement with the 

City of Akutan and the State of Alaska.  

 

Sand Point and Akutan Harbor Floats 
Administration, the Mayor and Moffatt & Nichol will be attending debriefing meetings on 

February 10, 2022 to review the Borough’s RAISE grant application and on March 8, 2022 to 

review the PIDP grant application. This will provide an opportunity to receive feedback on our 

application and obtain information on how to improve our application in 2022.  

 

Administration has requested proposals from Moffatt & Nichol for grant writing services for the 

2022 RAISE and PIDP grants. Administration will pay for these services either out of the project 

contingency or Sand Point/Akutan Harbor Float line items.    

 

On January 26, 2022, a CAPSIS request for the Sand Point Harbor Float was submitted to the 

Alaska Legislature. 

 

Financial Software 
Financial Policies & Procedures and Policy & Procedure Consistency are two items on the 

strategic plan. As we were going through this, it was identified that our financial software is 

really old and has to go through tons of updates to stay relevant and useable. The system needs to 

be upgraded, which will allow the Borough to be more efficient regarding finances. A Request 

for Proposal for Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) and Implementation Services was issued on 

December 2, 2021. An addendum was issued on December 14, 2021. We received two proposals 

by the January 20, 2022 deadline. Unfortunately, both proposals were submitted incorrectly. On 

February 1, 2022, I informed the proposers that the Borough was rejecting the proposals for the 

RFP and that our intent is to re-advertise soon. Administration plans on making a few minor 

changes to the RFP and issuing the RFP again later in February.   

 

Other Items 
• Administration is in the process of planning the FY23 Budget. On January 17, 2022, I 

sent the Community Budget Request information to the Borough communities. 

Responses are due by March 16, 2022.  



4 | P a g e  
 

• On January 26, 2021, CAPSIS requests for the Cold Bay Dock Site Reconnaissance and 

Feasibility Study and the Sand Point Harbor Float A project were submitted to the 

legislature.  

• I have also been continuously conducting day to day operations.  

 

If you have any questions, comments, or concerns please contact me at (907) 274-7580 or 

abailey@aeboro.org.    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cold Bay Terminal Photos 

Courtesy of F&W Construction 

mailto:abailey@aeboro.org


   

1 
 

To:  The Honorable Mayor Osterback, AEB Assembly  

From:   Talia Jean-Louis, Assistant Administrator 

Subject: Assembly Report 
Date:  February 10, 2022 

 

 

 

Meetings Attended: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Strategic Planning:  

 

1.25.22 Fisheries Research, Board of Fish Diversification of Natural 

Resources.  

1.26.22 Deferred Maintenance    

1.26.22 Retention Schedule  

1.26.22 Community & Agency Alignment  

1.26.22 PR & Marketing  

 

Tacoma Diesel:  

February 7th, Ivan with Tacoma Diesel will be in Akutan for maintenance and repair on the 

generator.  

 

Beazley Breach Solutions:  

Please see below an example of a recent phishing email received from someone imitating Anne, 

and I. Data breach, phishing, and scamming is an ever-present issue. Please make sure to read 

email addresses closely and pay attention to punctuation or odd writing. If it looks fishy, don’t 

click. All suspicious email should be immediately forwarded to ICE Services.  
 

 

 

 

 

1.14.22 AML Survey Discussion Meeting  

1.14.22 False Pass Airport Meeting 

1.18.22 Covid-19 Meeting  

1.19.22 Eastern Aleutians Tribe False Pass Airport 

1.19.22 Strategic Planning Discussion  

1.20.22 False Pass Airport Meeting with APICDA 

1.20.22 Cold Bay Airport Terminal Addition Construction  

1.21.22 Staff Meeting  

1.25.22 Financial Proposal Review  

1.27.22 Cold Bay Terminal Addition  

1.28.22 ERP Pricing Discussion  

1.28.22 COVID & Municipal Personnel Policies   

2.03.22 Seabelt- Travel and Tourism  

2.03.22 Cold Bay Terminal Addition  



   

2 
 

 

Example 1:  

 
Example 2:  

 

 
 

ICE Services:  

 

Our Anchorage office has successfully migrated into our Firewall system. King Cove and Sand 

Point are next in line to with ICE Services coordinating with on-site staff to complete the swap 

there as well. As always, ICE Services will also manage the migration as a part of our existing 

Helpdesk Services Agreement.  

 

Mail Tracking Form: 

 

 
 

The Community letter helped bring in the initial influx of mail tracking forms. Since mid-

December we have received 9 forms.  

 

  



www.aleutianseast.org www.facebook.com/AleutiansEastBorough/ ltanis@aeboro.org (907) 274-7579  

 
 

To: Honorable Mayor Alvin Osterback and Aleutians East Borough Assembly 

From: Laura Tanis, AEB Communications Director 

Through: Anne Bailey, AEB Administrator 

Subject: Communications Director’s Report to the Assembly 

Date: Feb. 4, 2022 

 
 

 

Press Release:  

I’m working with Ernie and Charlotte on a response to 

comments made during a recent Alaska House 

Fisheries Committee regarding the Yukon river chum 

runs and the reason for the poor returns. An article 

will correct some of the misstatements made during 

this committee hearing regarding Area M. 

 

RFP for Photographer (Strategic Plan initiative) 

I have begun work on drafting an RFP for a professional photographer to visit the communities this 

summer to get updated high-resolution images of infrastructure, fishermen, residents, etc. We’ll 

have more on this later. 

 

Website Design (Strategic Plan initiative) 

I continue to meet with Planeteria Media with the 

website design. Currently, they’re taking links from the 

content I gave them from various tabs and pages and 

transferring it over. They plan to have a test run of the 

site on March 17th. 

 

In the Loop: 

The last In the Loop newsletter contained a couple of 

articles. One was about a new ambulance that King Cove will get this summer or early fall, thanks 

to a grant to the Belkofski Tribe from the American Rescue Plan. Erin Wilson Potter from the 

Aleutian Housing Authority wrote the grant and submitted it on the Tribe’s behalf after Chris 

Babcock provided information regarding the need for a new ambulance. The old one is 32+ years 

old and has mechanical and other issues. This will be a huge help to the community and first 

responders. 

http://www.aleutianseast.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AleutiansEastBorough/
mailto:ltanis@aeboro.org


www.aleutianseast.org www.facebook.com/AleutiansEastBorough/ ltanis@aeboro.org (907) 274-7579  

 

The other article focused on Sand Point Police Officer Curt Boyle 

who was recently honored with the award of courage after chasing 

an armed suspect and helping to apprehend him before retiring 

from the Washington State Troopers.  

 

Upcoming Projects: 

• Update the social media plan for Aleutians East Borough 

• Finish drafting RFP for professional photographer to visit 

and photograph Borough communities, infrastructure, etc. 

• Continue work on website design/update 

 

 

 

 

 

Date Meetings Attended Meeting Type 

Feb. 3, 2022 Planeteria Media – website design Zoom 

Feb 1, 2022 COVID-19 Meeting Bor., EAT, AEBSD, 

communities 

Teleconference 

Jan. 27, 2022 Planeteria Media – website design Zoom 

Jan. 26, 2022 Staff & PGS – strategic initiative – community align. Teams 

Jan. 26, 2022 Anne, Talia, PGS – Strategic – PR & Marketing Teams 

Jan. 21, 2022 Staff Meeting  Teams 

Jan. 20, 2022  Planeteria Media – website design Zoom 

Jan. 18, 2022 COVID-19 Meeting  Bor, communities, EAT, AEBSD Teleconference 

 

http://www.aleutianseast.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AleutiansEastBorough/
mailto:ltanis@aeboro.org


  www.aebfish.org   www.facebook.com/AEBfish  eweiss@aeboro.org   907-274-7557   2/4/2022            

To:  The Honorable Mayor Osterback, Aleutians East Borough Assembly  

From:  Ernie Weiss, Natural Resources Department Director  

Subj:  Report to the Assembly  

Date:  February 4, 2022 

 

 

Alaska Board of Fisheries 

 The Statewide Shellfish meeting is now scheduled March 26 – April 2 at the Egan Center 

in Anchorage. Proposal 282, (formerly ACR 7) will be taken up during the meeting. The on-time 

comment deadline for the Statewide meeting has been extended until March 11th. The Board will 

also be meeting at the Egan beginning March 10th for the SE meeting and on March 23rd for the 

hatchery committee. The AEB will host a conference room at the Egan during the Statewide 

meeting and have reserved a block of rooms at a nearby hotel. Anyone planning to attend Board 

of Fisheries meetings is expected to register beforehand on the meeting webpage. 

At this writing there are still only 6 members on the Board, following the resignation of 

member Indy Walton December 20th. The Governor did not appoint a replacement Board member 

within 30 days as State law requires. Candidates for the Board of Fish were reported publicly in 

September; Lena Hoblet of False Pass has also recently declared her candidacy for the Board. I 

am not aware of any of the other candidates at this time. 

Proposals for the 2022/2023 meeting cycle, including for the Bristol Bay, AYK and Alaska 

Peninsula/Aleutian Island/Chignik finfish meetings, are due April 11th, 2022. 

 

Chinook & Chum Salmon 

 In December several native associations submitted an emergency petition to the Secretary 

of Commerce requesting an elimination of all Chinook salmon bycatch in the Bering Sea pollock 

fishery, which would essentially close the BSAI pollock fishery. On average 35% of AEB raw fish 

tax revenue comes from pollock processed onshore at plants in the Borough. Mayor Osterback 

sent a letter to the Secretary last month opposing the request. NMFS denied the request Jan 25th. 

 An international research team, including 4 vessels and 60 scientists, headed out this week 

to study salmon development and ocean conditions in the Gulf of Alaska through April. 

 ADFG Commissioner Doug Vincent-Lang addressed low salmon returns in the AYK at 

the Alaska House Fisheries Committee February 23rd. 

 

North Pacific Fishery Management Council 

 The NPFMC  is having an abbreviated meeting this week – of interest: the Snow crab 

rebuilding plan progress report and a discussion paper on potential changes to the Council process. 

In addition, the SSC reviewed the Trawl EM preliminary review draft. 

 

Alaska Board of Game 

The Board met Jan 21-29 in Wasilla and adopted these changes of interest to Borough residents:  

• The Board adopted a positive customary and traditional use finding for the Unimak Island 

Caribou herd and a negative intensive management finding.  

• The Board adopted proposal 206 to open a resident only season for brown bear in Unit 9, 

amended to eliminate the fall season and extend the spring season to May 31 in even years 

for residents only in units 9C, 9D and 9E. 

• The Board failed 2 Emperor geese proposals and took no action on the other 17 Emperor 

geese proposals. 

The Board of Game meets March 5 – 12 in Fairbanks to discuss statewide regulations 

 

http://www.aebfish.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish
mailto:eweiss@aeboro.org
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static-f/regulations/regprocess/fisheriesboard/pdfs/2021-2022/proposals/282.pdf
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static-f/regulations/regprocess/fisheriesboard/pdfs/2021-2022/ws/acrs/acrs.pdf
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/index.cfm?adfg=fisheriesboard.meetinginfo
https://www.adn.com/business-economy/2021/09/07/dunleavy-appoints-indy-walton-of-soldotna-to-fill-vacant-seat-on-seven-member-alaska-board-of-fisheries/
https://kawerak.org/download/emergency-bycatch-petition-2021/
http://www.aebfish.org/SecCommerceAEBletter011422.pdf
https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/feature-story/noaa-fisheries-denies-request-emergency-action-bering-sea-salmon-bycatch
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/environment/international-research-team-to-probe-salmon-mysteries-in-north-pacific/
http://www.akleg.gov/basis/Meeting/Detail?Meeting=HFSH%202022-02-03%2011:00:00
http://www.npfmc.org/
https://meetings.npfmc.org/CommentReview/DownloadFile?p=3e2912c0-516c-4b41-9f4d-37320cf25880.pdf&fileName=E%20Council%20process%20reflections%20and%20ideas%20Feb%202022.pdf


  www.aebfish.org   www.facebook.com/AEBfish  eweiss@aeboro.org   907-274-7557   2/4/2022            

 

 

International Pacific Halibut Commission 

 The IPHC held the annual meeting virtually again this year, January 24-28. Total constant 

exploitable yield (TCEY) is set for each IPHC area at the annual meeting. TCEY increased in each 

area this year except in area 2A. 

 

    IPHC TCEYs in pounds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Alaska Marine Highway System 

The AMHS February 2022 Status Update includes information on the Tustumena revised 

shipyard schedule, Tustumena replacement vessel project, and the new Alaska Marine Highway 

Operations Board first meeting. 

 

IPHC area 2017  2018  2019 2020 2021 2022 

2A 1,470,000 1,320,000 1,650,000 1,650,000 1,650,000 1,650,000 

2B 8,320,000  7,000,000 6,830,000 6,830,000 7,000,000 7,560,000 

2C 7,040,000 6,340,000  6,340,000 5,850,000 5,800,000 5,910,000 

3A 12,960,000  12,540,000 13,500,000 12,200,000 14,000,000 14,550,000 

3B 3,980,000  3,270,000 2,900,000 3,120,000 3,120,000 3,900,000 

4A 1,800,000 1,740,000 1,940,000 1,750,000 2,050,000 2,100,000 

4B 1,340,000 1,280,000 1,450,000 1,310,000 1,400,000 1,450,000 

4CDE 3,840,000 3,620,000 4,000,000 3,900,000 3,980,000 4,100,000 

total 40,740,000 37,210,000 38,610,000 36,600,000 39,000,000 41,220,000 

Recent meetings attended  

Crab Plan Team     Adobe Connect  Jan 10-14 

Alaska Fishing Communities    Zoom    Jan 14, 28 

Board of Game Southcentral/Southwest AK  Wasilla/webcast  Jan 21-29 

IPHC       Adobe Connect  Jan 24-28 

Bycatch Task Force     Zoom    Jan 28 

NPFMC SSC & AP     Adobe Connect  Jan 31-Feb 4 

Anchorage Fish & Game AC meeting  Anchorage   Feb 1 

 

Upcoming meetings    

North Pacific Fishery Mangt Council   Adobe Connect  Feb 7-11 

AMHS Operations Board    Teleconference  Feb 11 

Alaska Fishing Communities    Zoom    Feb 11, 25 

Board of Fish SE/Yakutat Finfish   Anchorage Egan Center March 10-22 

Board of Fish Hatchery Committee   Anchorage Egan Center March 23 

Board of Fish Statewide Shellfish   Anchorage Egan Center March 26-April 2 

 

Please call if you have any questions or concerns. 

http://www.aebfish.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish
mailto:eweiss@aeboro.org
https://dot.alaska.gov/amhs/doc/service_notices/Status%20Update_2_01_22.pdf


To: Honorable Mayor Osterback, Aleutians East Borough Assembly
From: Charlotte Levy, Natural Resources Assistant Director
Re: Report to the Assembly
Date: February 10th, 2022

Electronic Monitoring - WGOA3/EFP:
● In collaboration with fixed-gear fishermen participants and NMFS FMA division, we are developing

a sampling design for the “fixed-gear” portion of the project. Data collection will likely start in
April 2022.

● I am writing a brief white paper on split-offload deliveries to tenders. The purpose of this paper is to
help NMFS fully understand the issue, and to try to find a solution prior to the 2024 regulatory
implementation.

● Josh Keaton, NMFS presented a preliminary analysis of trawl EM sampling issues to the SSC. The
SSC was generally very supportive of the program and it’s collaborative nature. I will be tracking
SSC suggestions to restrict tender use to certain geographical areas within stat areas.

● There will not be a CS in 610, however some boats may participate in Kodiak pollock. A technician
has been to Sand Point to prep vessels, and we anticipate receiving some data for A season.

WGOA Data Portal:
● Joe Sullivan has been contracted through Intertidal Agency to develop the legal infrastructure. The

project has been extended through May 2022, which should provide enough time to finish the legal
work and final reporting.

Mariculture:
● I am working on the NFWF final report and should have it available for the April meeting.
● I have submitted annual reports to ADFG for the Zachary Bay operating permit, as well as the

collection permit for sampling conducted in May 2021.
● Local processors have expressed interest in pursuing mariculture, and I will be exploring possible

opportunities to collaborate.

AFSC Cod Tagging Project:
● We anticipate receiving a modified amount of AFSC Cooperative Research funding for

approximately $80K. Combined with the $191K available in the Fisheries Research line item, this
will be enough to complete a full round of tagging. Due to limited AFSC funding, I anticipate
contracting directly with Dr. Julie Nielsen who is the lead analyst on the project.

● We are preparing for field work that will include the same tagging and biological sampling as 2020,
with the addition of 40 Lotek satellite tags, stress test sampling, and piloting a stereo-camera system
as a tool to observe behavior and for quantitative assessment.

● An RFP for vessel charter services was posted on January 31st, and will be open to applications
through February 25th. The charter is expected to occur sometime between March 14-23.

● I will be traveling to Seattle in February to attend a cold water survival course for free through the
Observer Program.

Salmon Issues
● The NRD is working closely with AEB Administration, the Area M seiners and others. I am also

working on a cost-benefit analysis.
● We received the first invoice from Northern Economics and a progress report should be available at

the next meeting.

www.aebfish.org | www.facebook.com/AEBfish | clevy@aeboro.org | (907) 274-7566

https://meetings.npfmc.org/CommentReview/DownloadFile?p=024d7080-842a-4cd5-a223-8142214edb35.pdf&fileName=D4%20Trawl%20EM%20Analysis.pdf
http://www.aebfish.org
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish


ASSEMBLY COMMENTS 



PUBLIC COMMENTS 



NEXT MEETING DATE, TIME 

AND PLACE 



ADJOURNMENT 


	Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting
	Roll Call and Establishment of Quorom
	Adoption of Agenda
	Agenda

	Community Roll Call and Public Comment on Agenda Items
	Conflict of Interest
	Platting Board Agenda
	Reslution 22-05

	Minutes
	January 13, 2022 Minutes

	Financial Report
	Investment Report
	Consent Agenda
	Resolution 22-29, approving the State of Alaska Final Easement and Survey for ADL 228613

	Ordinances
	Ordinance 22-09, authorizing the Mayor to negotiate and execute a sublease within the Cold Bay Terminal for air transportation services

	Resolutions
	Resolution 22-30

	Old Business
	New Business
	Reports and Updates
	Administrator Update
	Assistant Administrator Update
	Communications Director Update
	Natural Resources Director Update
	Assistant Natural Resources Director Update

	Assembly Comments
	Public Comments
	Next Meeting Date, Time and Place
	Adjournment



